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al hydrogen aviation fuel research and
development program, should it re-
celve a hearing in September before
the Senate Commerce, Science and
Transportation Committee.

Mr. President, I should add the fact
that today, July 11, is Mr. Conrad's
80th birthday. He first soloed as a
pilot in 1929. He is truly an aviator of
the barnstorming era whose Sunday
afternoon feat last month now places
him among such pioneers as Lind-
bergh, Yeager, and the Wright broth-
ers. He is to be commended for demon-
strating the way to the future for
world aviation; namely, cryogenic fuel.

Both Mr. Conrad and the National
Aeronautic Association are to com-
mended also for their efforts to see
that the United States remains a
leader in advancing the hydrogen
economy. I congratulate them both
and only hope their example can in-
spire my colleagues to support my own
legislative initiatives in this regard.

SAM NICOLETTI
Mr. DOLE. Mr. President, I would

like to recognize a distinguished native
of Kansas, Mr. Sam Nlcoletti, who re-
cently retired as superintendent of
Northeast Unified School District 246,
in Arma, KS. Mr. Nicoletti exhibited
hard work and dedication to the edu-
cation field for the benefit of many
Kansans.

A lifelong citizen of Arma, Sam Nico-
letti received a B.S. and M.S. from
nearby Pittsburg State University.

Mr. Nicoletti taught school at the
local high school and, in 1965, proceed-
ed as superintendent of schools,
Northeast Unified School District 246.

Sam Nicolettl's involvement in the
education system extends beyond his
impressive resume. He helped the dis-
trict acquire statewide grant money
for a junior high school and additions
to the elementary school He instigat-
ed construction of the North East
High School and athletic facilities in-
cluding a football field, track and
bleachers.

His involvement in statewide educa-
tion committees includes a position on
the executive board of the Kansas
State High School Activities Associa-
tion and a member of the Curriculum
Advisory Board, Kansas State Depart-
ment of Education.

Civic pride is also important to Mr.
Nicoletti. His involvement in the Arma
Boy Scouts has lasted 39 years. For
the past 42 years he has assisted with
homecoming activities for the city of
Arma, KS.

On the occasion of his retirement, it
is appropriate to salute this native son
of Kansas who has made significant
contributions to the education system
and the State of Kansas.

Mr. President, I suggest the absence
of a quorum.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. The clerk will call the roll.

The legislative clerk proceeded to
call the roll.

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that the order for
the quorum call be rescinded.

The ACTINO PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. Without objection. it is so or-
dered.

UNANIMOUS-CONSENT AGREE-
MENT-ESTABLISHMENT OF
VETERANS' ADMINISTRATION
AS AN EXECUTIVE DEPART-
MENT
Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, I ask

unanimous consent that on tomorrow,
at 9:15 am., the Governmental Affairs
Committee be discharged from further
consideration of H-R. 3471; that the
Senate proceed to Its immediate con-
sideration; that without any further
debate, all after the enacting clause be
striken and the test of S. 533 be substi-
tuted for the House language; that
without any further debate, interven-
ing action of any kind or any motion,
the Senate proceed to an immediate
vote on passage of H.R. 3471, as
amended.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. Without objection, It is so or-
dered.

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that it be in order
at this time the yeas and nays on H.R.
3471.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. Without objection, it is so or-
dered.

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, I ask for
the yeas and nays on final passage.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tern-
pore. Is there sufficient second?

There Is sufficient second.
The yeas and nays were ordered.

ORDER TO PRINT H.R. 1807
Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, on behalf

of Mr. BurmPRa I ask unanimous con-
sent that the amendment to H.R.
1807, the Minority Business Develop-
ment Program Reform Act of 1988, be
printed as passed.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. Without objection, it is so or-
dered.

HEARING AID COMPATIBILITY
ACT

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that the Senate
proceed to the immediate consider-
ation of Calendar Order No. 743.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. The bill will be stated by title.

The assistant legislative clerk read
as follows:

A bill (8. 314) to require certain tele-
phones to be hearing aid compatible.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. Is there objection to the present
consideration of the bill?

There being no objection, the Senate
proceeded to consider the bill which
had been reported from the Commit-
tee on Commerce. Science, and Trans-
portation. with an amendment to

July ll, 1988-
strike all after the enacting clause and
insert in lieu thereof, the followlng:.
That this Act may be cited as the "Hearing
Aid Compatibility Act of 1988".

FINDING8

SEc. 2. The Congress finds that-
(1) to the fullest extent made possible by

technology and medical science, hearing-im-
paired persons should have equal access to
the national telecommunications network;

(2) present technology provides effective
coupling of telephones to hearing aids used
by some severely hearing-impaired persons
for communicating by voice telephone;

(3) anticipated improvements in both tele-
phone and hearing aid technologies promise
greater access in the future; and

(4) universal telephone service for hear-
ing-impaired persons will lead to greater em-
ployment opportunities and increased pro-
ductivity.

HEARING AID COMPATIBLITY REQUIREMENTS

Sc. 3. (a) Subsection (b) of section 710 of
the Communications Act of 1934 (47 U.S.C.
610) is amended to read as follows:

"(b)1) Except as provided in paragraphs
(2) and (3), the Commission shall require
that-

"(A) all essential telephones, and
"(B) all telephones manufactured in the

United States (other than for export) more
than one year after the date of enactment
of the Hearing Aid Compatibility Act of
1988 or imported for use in the United
States more than one year after such date,
provide internal means for effective use
with hearing aids that are designed to be
compatible with telephones which meet es-
tablished technical standards for hearing
aid compatibility.

"(2XA) The initial regulations prescribed
by the Commission under paragraph (1) of
this subsection after the date of enactment
of the Hearing Aid Compatibility Act of
1988 shall exempt from the requirements
established pursuant to paragraph (IXB) of
this subsection only-

"(I) telephones used with public mobile
services;

"(II) telephones used with private radio
services;

"(ill) cordless telephones; and
"(lv) secure telephones
"(B) The exemption provided by such reg-

ulations for cordless telephones shall not
apply with respect to cordless telephones
manufactured or imported more than three
years after the date of enactment of the
Hearing Aid Compatibility Act of 1988.

"(C) The Commission shall periodically
assess the appropriateness of continuing in
effect the exemptions provided by such reg-
ulations for telephones used with public
mobile services and telephones used with
private radio services. The Commission shall
revoke or otherwise limit any such exemp-
tion if the Commission determines that-

"(I) such revocation or limitation is in the
public interest;

"(ii) continuation of the exemption with-
out such revocation or limitation would
have an adverse effect on hearing-impaired
individuals;

"(illi) compliance with the requirements of
paragraph (1XB) is technologically feasible
for the telephones to which the exemption
applies; and

"(iv) compliance with the requirements of
paragraph (1XB) would not increase costs to
such an extent that the telephones to which
the exemption applies could not be success-
fully marketed.

"(3) The Commission may, upon the applt-
cation of any interested person, initiate a
proceeding to waive the requirements of
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paragraph (1XB) of this subsection with re-
spect to new telephones, or telephones asso-
cilated with a new technology or service. The
Commission shall not grant such a waiver
unless the Commission determines, on the
basis of evidence in the record of such pro-
ceeding, that such telephones, or such tech-
nology or service, are in the public interest,
and that (A) compliance with the require-
ments of paragraph (1XB) is technologically
infeasible, or (B) compliance with such re-
quirements would Increase the costs of the
telephones, or of the technology or service,
to such an extent that such telephones,
technology, or service could not be success-
fully marketed. In any proceeding under
this paragraph to grant a waiver from the
requirements of paragraph (1XB), the Com-
mission shall consider the effect on hearing-
impaired individuals of granting the waiver.
The Commission shall periodically review
and determine the continuing need for any
waiver granted pursuant to this paragraph.

"(4) For purposes of this subsection-
"(A) the term 'essential telephones' means

only coin-operated telephones, telephones
provided for emergency use, and other tele-
phones frequently needed for use by per-
sons using such hearing aids;

"(B) the term 'public mobile services'
means air-to-ground radiotelephone serv-
ices, cellular radio telecommunications serv-
ices offshore radio, rural radio service,
public land mobile telephone service, and
other common carrier radio communication
services covered by part 22 of title 47 of the
Code of Federal Regulations;

"(C) the term 'private radio services'
means private land mobile radio services
and other communications services charac-
terized by the Commission in its rule as pri-
vate radio services; and

"(D) the term 'secure telephones' means
telephones that are approved by the United
States Government for the transmission of
classified or sensitive voice communica-
tions'".

(b) Section 710(f) of the Communications
Act of 1934 (47 U.8.C. 10(f)) is amended by
striking out the second sentence and insert-
ing in lieu thereof the following. "The Com-
mission shall complete rulemaking actions
required to implement the amendments
made by the Hearing Aid Compatibility Act
of 1988 within nine months after the date of
enactment of such Act Thereafter, the
Commission shall periodically review the
regulations established pursuant to this sec-
tion.".

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. The bill is open to further
amendment. If there be no further
amendment to be proposed, the ques-
tion is on agreeing to the committee
amendment in the nature of a substi-
tute.

The committee amendment in the
nature of a substitute was agreed to.

Mr. PRESSLER. Mr. President, I am
very pleased to rise today to speak in
favor of 8. 314, the Hearing Aid Com-
patlbility Act of 1988. I have been
working on this legislation for 4 years
now, and it was very gratifying to see
the House of Representatives pass the
companion measure last month. The
Senate Committee on Commerce, -8ci-
ence, and Transportation favorably re-
ported S. 314 on May 24, and I look
forward to quick passage by the full
Senate.

This act will require that all tele-
phones, with certain exceptions, man-
ufactured In or imported to the United

States more than 1 year after enact-
ment be hearing aid compatible. Thus
this legislation ultimately aims at uni-
versal telephone compatibility with
hearing aids.

The Telecommunications for the
Disabled Act of 1982 began to address
the needs of hearing-impaired individ-
uals by requiring "essential" tele-
phones to be hearing-aid compatible.
This ensured that there always would
be some telephones available to the
hearing-impaired, but most telephones
were not defined as essential.

I wonder how well most of us would
function if we were restricted to using
only those telephones which have
been defined by the FCC as essential.
Fortunately, for most of us, we can use
any telephone. When we visit friends,
we know we canYcallhome fromtAeib_
hol1eWle we are awayfrom our
desks,e-e:know we can still usether
telephones In the wobrp-iace. When we
-stay at aho1teL we don't have to ask
for a room which has a compatible
telephone, and then hope that such a
room is available. Life would not be so
easy if we were all restricted to only
those telephones currently defined as
essential

Even that situation could be accepta-
ble if there were some good reason for
It But there isn't. The technology
which allows telephones to be hearing
aid compatible has been available
since 1945. It is known as inductive
coupling and uses the electromagnetic
field to transmit the conversation.
This transmission can occur if both
the telephone handset and the hear-
ing aid are equipped with a telecoil.
Prior to the deregulation of AT&T,
virtually all the telephones they man-
ufactured were hearing aid compati-
ble. Thus there was no need for a legal
requirement.

Since deregulation, however, with
the entrance of many new manufac-
turers, and in the absence of a legal re-
quirement, telephones without a mag-
netic coil inevitably have entered the
marketplace, Many of these are pro-
duced overseas To the credit of GTE
and AT&T, they have continued to
make nearly all of their telephones
hearing aid compatible. But the per-
centage of incompatible telephones on
the market has steadily climbed.

Not only is the technology available
but It does not appreciably add to the
cost of producing telephones In 1985,
the Commerce Department stated
that hearing aid compatible tele-
phones were no more expensive to
manufacture than noncompatible tele-
phones. The industry -itself provides
estimates of anywhere from 10 to 50
cents additional cost per phone, and
GTE claims that compatible tele-
phones are Just as competitive on the
market as noncompatible telephones.

Perhaps the most difficult Issue with
regard to this legislation was the ques-
tion of new, as yet unknown, technol-
ogies The original language did not
allow for new -technologies and this
caused great concern In the Industry.

On the other hand, a broad exemption
for new technologies could defeat the
whole purpose of this bill by allowing
some new type of general purpose tele-
phone developed a couple of years
from now to be noncompatible.

Dealing with the unknown is diffl-
cult, but I think we reached a good
compromise. New technologies must
be compatible with hearing aids,
unless they are specifically exempted
by the FCC. To gain such an exemp-
tion, the developer must demonstrate
that compatibility is either technologi-
cally impossible or so costly as to pre-
vent the product from being success-
fully marketed. Thus, products can be
developed and marketed which cannot
be made compatible.

We cannot predict all the specialized
telephone technologies which may be
developed in the future, and they
must not be prevented from coming to
market. On the other hand, the aver-
age telephone that is used in the home
and place of business should continue
to be compatible with hearing aids, re-
gardless of how that technology
changes.

To this end, the FCC is instructed to
consider the needs of the hearing-im-
paired before granting any waivers.
And in no case will any telephones
currently required to be hearing-aid
compatible be exempted.

Telephones used for national securi-
ty are the only telephones permanent-
ly exempted from the compatibility re-
quirement. Cordless telephones are ex-
empted for 3 years and cellular tele-
phones receive an initial exemption.
Except for secure telephones and cord-
less telephones, all the initial exemp-
tions and future exemptions to be
granted by the FCC will be reviewed
periodically by the FCC to determine
if they are still warranted. The period-
ic review provisions act as a valve to
keep the compatibility trend flowing
in the right direction. A new exemp-
tion cannot be created for an old tech-
nology. Again, the ultimate goal of
this legislation is to provide for univer-
sal compatibility.

Before closing, I must mention the
role of David Saks, of the Organiza-
tion for Use of the Telephone (OUT),
in initiating and advocating this legis-
lation. David has worked tirelessly for
years on behalf of the hearing-im-
paired community to ensure universal
access to the telephone network. OUT
is not a large organization with a huge
budget. Nevertheless, David coordinat-
ed support for this legislation from or-
ganizations such as the America Asso-
ciation of Retired Persons, the Nation-
al Center for Law and the Deaf, the
National Association of Regulatory
Utility Commissioners, and numerous
other national and State organiza-
tions. He worked vigorously with Mr.
MAvRourzs in the House, myself in the
Senate, and the telephone and elec-
tronics industries.

Mr. President, I again urge passage
of this legislation. With existing tech-
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nology and at negligible cost to indus-
try, we can create the same universal
telephone service for hearing-impaired
persons that the rest of us enjoy.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. The question is on the engross-
ment and the third reading of the bill.

The bill was ordered to be engrossed
for a third reading, and was read the
third time.

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that the Senate
now proceed to the consideration of
Calendar Order No. 723, H.R. 2213.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. The bill will be stated by title.

The assistant legislative clerk read
as follows:

A bill (H.R. 2213) to require certain tele-
phones to be hearing aid compatible.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. Is there objection to the present
consideration of the bill?

There being no objection, the Senate
proceeded to consider the bill.

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that all after the
enacting clause be stricken, and the
text of S. 314, as amended, be inserted
in lieu thereof.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. Without objection, it is so or-
dered.

The question is on the engrossment
and the third reading of the bill.

The bill (HAR. 2213) was ordered to
be engrossed for a third reading, was
read the third time, and passed.

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, I move to
reconsidered the vote by which the bill
was passed.

Mr. DOLE. I Move to lay that
motion on the table.

The motion to lay on the table was
agreed to.

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that Calendar
Order No. 743 be indefinitely post-
poned.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. Without objection, it is so or-
dered.

ORDER TO INDEFINITELY
POSTPONE S. 1993

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that Calendar
Order No. 753, 8. 1993, a bill to amend
the Small Business Act to improve the
growth and development of small busi-
ness concerns owned and controlled by
socially and economically disadvan-
taged individuals, especially through
participation in the Federal procure-
ment process, and for other purposes,
be indefinitely postponed.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. Without objection, it is so or-
dered.

ORDERS FOR TUESDAY, JULY 12,
1988

RECESS UNTIL 9 A.M.

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that when the
Senate completes its business today it

stand in recess until the hour of 9
o'clock tomorrow morning.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. Without objection, it is so or-
dered.

REDUCTION OF LZADER TIME AND MORNING
BUSINiSS

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that on tomorrow
morning the time of the two leaders be
reduced to 5 minutes each and that,
following the time for the recognition
on the two leaders under the standing
order, there be a period for morning
business to extend until 9:15 am., and
that Senators may speak during that
period for morning business for not to
exceed 1 minute each.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. Without objection, It is so or-
dered.

PROGRAM
Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, the order

has been entered, has it not, for a vote
on final passage of the Veterans' De-
partment bill?

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. That is correct.

Mr. BYRD. And that will occur at
9:15 am.?

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. The majority leader is correct.

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, the dis-
tinguished Republican leader and I
have agreed that on tomorrow, follow-
ing the vote on the veterans' bill, the
Senate will then proceed to the consid-
eration of the transportation appro-
priations bill. So that will be the order
following the vote. If both sides can
alert Senators who are involved in the
transportation bill the managers
thereof, the Senate can then proceed
quickly to that bill.

After the transportation appropria-
tions bill, Mr. President, under the
order as it presently stands, the
Senate will proceed to the consider-
ation of the HUD appropriations bill.
Upon the disposition of that bill, the
Senate will take up the Interior appro-
priations bill.

Does the distinguished Republican
leader have any statement he wishes
to make or any comments about the
program as I have outlined it, or any
further business he would like to
transact?

Mr. DOLE. No further business. I
have indicated to the majority leader
that we will check on the Labor-HHS
appropriations bill-we might be able
to do a portion of that-and also the
other outstanding bills.

Mr. BYRD. The only remaining ones
would be Agriculture, Defense, and
State-Justice-Commerce. Those three,
in addition to the Labor-HHS bill
which has been mentioned by the able
Republican leader.

Also tomorrow morning I would like
to get a time agreement on the Endan-
gered Species Act. If the distinguished
leader could alert anyone on his side
who might be involved in that act, I

would like to put that request follow-
ing the rollcall vote.

Mr. DOLE. I will ask the distin-
guished Senator from Idaho, Senator
McCLuRZ, to be here. I will be attend-
ing a White House meeting at that
time. He has an interest in that bill.
We will notify him and ask him to be
present following the vote.

Mr. BYRD. Very well.

CONCLUSION OF MORNING
BUSINESS

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, has morn-
ing business been closed?

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. If there is no further morning
business, morning business is closed.

ESTABLISHMENT OF VETERANS'
ADMINISTRATION AS AN EXEC-
UTIVE DEPARTMENT
The Senate continued with the con-

sideration of the bill.
Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, what is

the pending business before the
Senate?

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. S. 533 is the pending business.

Mr. BYRD. That is the bill creating
a new department for veterans' af-
fairs?

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. That is correct.

Mr. BYRD. I thank the Chair.

RECESS UNTIL 9 A.M.,
TOMORROW

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, if there
be no further business to come before
the Senate, I move, in accordance with
the order previously entered, that the
Senate stand in recess until the hour
of 9 o'clock a-m. tomorrow.

The motion was agreed to; and, at
8:16 p.m., the Senate recessed until
Tuesday, July 12, 1988, at 9 am.

NOMINATIONS
Executive nominations received by

the Secretary of the Senate July 8,
1988, after the recess of the Senate,
under authority of the order of the
Senate of February 3, 1987:

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

SALVATORE R. MARTOCHE. OF NEW YORK. TO BE
AN ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF THE TREASURY. VICE
FRANCIS ANTHONY KEATINO 11.

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

R. KENT BURTON. OF VIROINIA TO BE AS8ISTANT
SECRETARY OF COMMERCE FOR OCEANS AND AT-
MOSPHERE. VICE JAMES CURTIS MACK IL RESIONED.

EXPORT-IMPORT BANK OF THE UNITED STATES

RICHARD C. HOUSEWORTH. OF ARIZONA. TO BE A
MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
EXPORT-IMPORT BANK OF THE UNITED STATES FOR
A TERM OF 4 YEARS EXPIRING JANUARY 20. 1991.
VICE RICHARD W. HELDRIDOE, RESIONED.

JAMS MADISON MEORIAL FELLOWSHIP
FOUNDATION

THE FOLLOWINO NAMED PERSONS TO BE MEMBERS
OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE JAMES MADI-
SON MEMORIAL FELLOWSHIP FOUNDATION FOR
TERMS OF a YEARS
JOAN R, CHALIINORI OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUM-

BIA. (NEW POSITION.)
BETTY 0UORHARD MURPHY. OF VIROINIA (NEW PO-

SITION.)
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This salary cap applies to the Staff Director
of the Sentencing Commission. Opinion of
the Comptroller General File No. B-227781
(September 11, 1987).

As a result, the salary of the Staff Direc-
tor is now artificially low, and over time will
become Increasingly unsuitable. The pro-
posed amendment disengages the Staff Di-
rector's salary from the capped General
Schedule and instead sets the salary at level
6 of the Senior Executive Service Schedule,
currently $77,500.

Other government officrals with responsi-
bility comparable to that of the Staff Direc-
tor are compensated at level 6 of the Senior
Executive Service Schedule. For example,
the Executive Director of the Federal Trade
Commission and the Director of the FTC's
Bureau of Economics are compensated at
that level, as are the Executive Directors of
the National Mediation Board, the National
Capital Planning Commission, and the U.S.
International Trade Commission. The staff
directors, inspectors general, and general
counsel of many other agencies are compen-
sated at level IV of the Executive Schedule
which is identical to level 6 of the Senior
Executive Service Schedule. Under the pro-
posd, the Staff Director of the Cominlssion
would still receive somewhat less .compensa-
tion than the Directors of the Federal Judi-
cial Center and the Administrative Office of
the United States Courts Those officials
earn the same salary as federal district
court judges, currently $89,500. 28 U.S.C.
603, 626.

Adoption of this amendment will enable
the Commission to attract and retain highly
qualified individuals for this important
criminal Justice post.

Sectioa 315
Because of the Sentencing Commission's

unusual status as an independent agency
within the Judicial branch. the Commis-
sion's employees are denied the opportuni-
ty, available to virtually all other federal
employees, to receive incentive awards for
meritorious service. An opinion of the
Comptroller General dated September 11;
1987 (File No. B-227781), holds that the
Commission may not grant such awards
without expres statutory authority. There
is no apparent reason why the Commission's
staff should be treated differently in this
regard from, for example, the staff of the
Administrative Office of the United States
Courts.

Section 316
This amendment corrects a technical

error. The Commission's authority to lower
a sentencing range is set forth in subsection
(o) of 994, not subdivision (n).

Section 317
Section 3553(a(2XC) directs a sentencing

court to consider the need to protect the
public from future crimes of the defendant
Section 9 of the Sentencing Act of 1987 in-
cluded this factor among those to be consid-
ered in imposing a term of supervised re-
lease. The proposed amendment would_ln-
elude this factor among those to be consid-
ered in setting and modifying the conditions
of supervised release as well.

Section 318
This amendment to 28 US.C. 994(p)

grants the Sentencing Commission more
flexibility with respect to the submission of

,guideline amendments to Congress. Al-
though the power to submit more than one
report and to amend a report may be implic-
it in section 994(p), it is desirable to provide
this authority explicitly and to clarify the
application of the one hundred and eighty
day period in the case of an amended
report.
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Thibs amenhnment also addresses a concern

raised about the operation of section 21 of
the Sentencing Act of 1987, Pub. Iv 100-182.
That provision gives the Sentencing Com-
mission the authority to issue temporary
guidelines in certain circumstances and pro-
vides that such temporary guidelines remain
in -effect only' until the expiration of the
180-day review period following the issuance
of the next set of permanent amendments
made pursuant to section 994(p). It was con-
templated at the time section 21 was en-
acted that any temporary guidelines pro-
mulgated pursuant to that section before
May 1 of a given year would be incorporated
in the report filed by the Sentencing Com-
mission for that year. That statute, howev-
er. falls to account for the situation where
the annual report is filed early in the legis-
lative sestion and the temporary guidelines
are promulgated thereafter, but not later
than May 1. It appears that in such an
event. the ten:prary guidelines, having not
been incorporated in the annual report.
could remain in effect in excess of 18
month--Le, until the expiration of the one
hundred and eighty day period following
the filing of the next annual report.

This amendment of 994(p) rectifies that
situation by providing for the filing of an
amended report by the Commission not
later than May L In the event it finds it
necessary to promulgate temporary guide-
lines after it has filed its annual report
under section 994(p), the Commission will
be able to amend its report, incorporating
the new guidelines, not later than May 1 so
that Congress can review all pending guide-
line changes during the current sessionL The
Commission, however, is not required to in-
corporate temporary amendments in an
amended report because there may be insuf-
ficient opportunity for public comment con-
cerning a temporary amendment, rendering
its submission to Congress as a permanent
amendment premature.

For example, if the Commission submits
permanent amendments to Congress in Jan-
uary. and then issues a temporary anmend-
ment in February, the Commission would be
expected to obtain public comment concern-
ing the temporary amendment and either
amend the'permanent report by May to in-
corporate the temporary amendment or
withdraw the temporary amendment If the
Cormmisaon ponesses the authority to
amend a submission to Congres there is no
reason ahv a temporary amendment issued
early in the reporting period should remain
in effect for over a year without Congres-
sional review. In contrast, a temporary
amendment issued in April need not be in-
cluded in an amended report before May 1,
due to the absence of an opportunity for
meaningful public comnment. Furthermore,
if the Commission happens to issue an
amended report or a new permanent report
after issuing a temporary amendnent in
April it would be appropriate for the Com-
mission to reissue the temporary amend-
ment after the new report In order to avoid
a lapse of the temporary amendment. This
course of action recognizes the Commis-
sion's authority, in this limited situation, to
prolong the life of the temporary amend-
ment until it has been exposed to public
comment and submitted as a permanent
amendment the following year.

Section 319
Sectin 3563(b)(3) currently provides that

the court may order a defendant to make
restitution'as a condition of probation pur-
suant to the provisionsrof section 3556. That
section merely refers to the procedures set
forth in sections 3806 and 3664.

The Committee believes that in enacting
the restitution provisions of 3503(bX3) Con-
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gress intended to permit restitution to be a
condition of probation in the case of any
criminal offense. The indirect reference to
section 3663, however, may have inadvert-
ently frustrated this purpose, in that sec-
tion 3663 describes the procedures for order-
lng restitution only in cases where viola-
tions of title 18 offenses, or violations of the
Federal Aviation Act, have occurred.

In order to make clear that restitution
may be made a condition of probation in
any criminal case, the amendment specifies
that while the procedures set forth in sec-
tion 3663 and 3664 are to be used, the linmi-
tation to tUtle 18 (and FAA) offenses does
not apply. The intermediate reference to
section 3556 Is eliminated as unneceEsary.

Section 320
Rule 4(b) of the Appellate Rules of Proce-

dure provides that in a criminal ruse, a de-
fendant has 10 days in which to Tle an
appeal, and the government haas ? days. In
both cases the time period rol3 frci' the
entry of the judgement.

Under 18 U.S.C. 3742, both the defendant
and the government are entitled to appeal
from the sentence imposed by the court in
certain circumstances. The Committee is
concerned that the respective time limits on
filing appeals currently set forth in Rule
4(b) might place a defendant at a disadvan-
tage in some cases brought under this sec-
tion. For instance, where a defendant re-
ceives a light sentence, he puny allow the 10
diy period to lapse without filing an appeal,
only to find the government has chosen to
file its own appeal vith!in its thirty day
limit. In such a case the defendant, under
current law, would be forclosed from filing a
cl-oss appeal.

The amendment remedies this situation
by permitting either party to start counting
the period for filing an appeal at the day an
appeal is filed by the opposing party. Thus
if the government files an appeal on the
thirtieth day, the defendant would have an
additional 10 days from that point to file a
cross appeal; and If two defendants in a case
filed appeals on the fifth and tenth days, re-
spectively. the government would have 30
days from the latter date in which to file Its
appeal.

BILLS PLACED ON THE
CALENDAR

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that when the
Senate receives from the House the
following bills that they be placed on
the calendar:

H-R. 4416. The Library Services construe-
tlion reauthorzatlon;

HR. 4585. Taft Institute reauthorization;
HER. 4592. Peace Institute, reauthoriza-

tion;
H.R. 4638. Elementary and secondary edu-

cation technical amendments bill;
H.R. 46S9. Higher education technical-

amendments bill;
R 4621. To provide congressional ap-

proval of the governing International Fish-
ery Agreement between the United States
and the German Democratic Republic;

ELR. 2213. A bill to require certain tele-
phones to be hearing aid compatible.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. With-
out objection, it is so ordered.

THE FIRST FRIENDSHIP FLIGHT
BETWEEN ALASKA AND SIBERIA

Mr. D'AMATO. Mr. President, I send
an enclosed resolution to the desk on
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al hydrogen aviation fuel research and
development program, should it re-
ceive a hearing in September before
the Senate Commerce, Science and
Transportation Committee.

Mr. President, I should add the fact
that today, July 11, is Mr. Conrad's
80th birthday. He first soloed as a
pilot In 1929. He is truly an aviator of
the barnstorming era whose Sunday
afternoon feat last month now places
him among such pioneers as Lind-
bergh, Yeager, and the Wright broth-
ers. He is to be commended for demon-
strating the way to the future for
world aviation; namely, cryogenic fueL

Both Mr. Conrad and the National
Aeronautic Association are to com-
mended also for their efforts to see
that the United States remains a
leader in advancing the hydrogen
economy. I congratulate them both
and only hope their example can in-
spire my colleagues to support my own
legislative initiatives in this regard.

SAM NICOLEITI
Mr. DOLE. Mr. President, I would

like to recognize a distinguished native
of Kansas, Mr. Sam Nlcoletti, who re-
cently retired as superintendent of
Northeast Unified School District 246,
in Arma, KS. Mr. Nlcoletti exhibited
hard work and dedication to the edu-
cation field for the benefit of many
Kanans.

A lifelong citizen of Arma, Sam Nlco-
letti received a BS. and MS. from
nearby Pittsburg State University.

Mr. Nicoletti taught school at the
local high school and, in 1965, proceed-
ed as superintendent of schools,
Northeast Unified School District 246.

Sam Nlcoletti's involvement in the
education system extends beyond his
impressive resume. He helped the dis-
trict acquire statewide grant money
for a junior high school and additions
to the elementary school He instigat-
ed construction of the North East
High School and athletic facilities in-
cluding a football field, track and
bleachers.

His involvement in statewide educa-
tion committees includes a position on
the executive board of the Kansas
State High School Activities Associa-
tion and a member of the Curriculum
Advisory Board, Kansas State Depart-
ment of Education.

Civic pride is also important to Mr.
NicolettL His involvement in the Arma
Boy Scouts has lasted 39 years. For
the past 42 years he has assisted with
homecoming activities for the city of
Arma, K.

On the occasion of his retirement, it
is appropriate to salute this native son
of Kansas who has made significant
contributions to the education system
and the State of Kansas.

Mr. President, I suggest the absence
of a quorum.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tern-
pore. The clerk will call the roll.

The legislative clerk proceeded to
call the roll.

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that the order for
the quorum call be rescinded.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. Without objection. it is so or-
dered.

UNANIMOUS-CONSENT AGREE-
MENT-ESTABLISHMENT OF
VETERANS' ADMINISTRATION
AS AN EXECUTIVE DEPART-
MENT
Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, I ask

unanimous consent that on tomorrow,
at 9:15 a m., the Governmental Affairs
Committee be discharged from further
consideration of HR. 3471; that the
Senate proceed to Its immediate con-
sideration; that without any further
debate, all after the enacting clause be
striken and the test of S. 533 be substi-
tuted for the House language; that
without any further debate, interven-
ing action of any kind or any motion,
the Senate proceed to an immediate
vote on passage of H.R. 3471, as
amended.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. Without objection, it is so or-
dered.

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that it be in order
at this time the yeas and nays on H.R.
3471.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. Without objection. it is so or-
dered.

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, I ask for
the yeas and nays on final passage.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. Is there sufficient second?

There is sufficient second.
The yeas and nays were ordered.

ORDER TO PRINT H.R. 1807
Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, on behalf

of Mr. BumaPrs I ask unanimous con-
sent that the amendment to H.R.
1807, the Minority Business Develop-
ment Program Reform Act of 1988, be
printed as passed.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. Without objection, it is so or-
dered.

HEARING AID COMPATIBILITY
ACT

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that the Senate
proceed to the immediate consider-
ation of Calendar Order No. 743.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. The bill will be stated by title.

The assistant legislative clerk read
as follows.

A bill (S. 314) to require certain tele-
phones to be hearing aid compatible.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. Is there objection to the present
consideration of the bill?

There being no objection. the Senate
proceeded to consider the bill which
had been reported from the Commit-
tee on Commerce, Science, and Trans-
portation, with an amendment to
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strike all after the enacting clause and
insert in lieu thereof, the followinge
That this Act may be cited as the Hearing
Aid Compatibility Act of 1988".

FrNDrNGS

Sc 2. The Congress finds that-
(1) to the fullest extent made possible by

technology and medical science, hearing-im-
paired persons should have equal access to
the national telecommunications network;

(2) present technology provides effective
coupling of telephones to hearing aids used
by some severely hearlng-impaired persons
for communicating by voice telephone;

(3) anticipated improvements in both tele-
phone and hearing aid technologies promise
greater access in the future; and

(4) universal telephone service for hear-
ing-impaired persons will lead to greater em-
ployment opportunities and increased pro-
ductivity.

REARnG AID COMPATIBILITY REQUIRNMENTS

Stc. 3. (a) Subsection (b) of section 710 of
the Communications Act of 1934 (47 IU.S.C.
610) is amended to read as follows

"(b)(1) Except as provided in paragraphs
(2) and (3). the Commisslon shall require
that-

"(A) all essential telephones, and
"(B) all telephones manufactured in the

United States (other than for export) more
than one year after the date of enactment
of the Hearing Aid Compatibility Act of
1988 or imported for use In the United
States more than one year after such date,
provide internal means for effective use
with hearing aids that are designed to be
compatible with telephones which meet es-
tablished technical standards for hearing
aid compatibility.

"(2XA) The initial regulations prescribed
by the Commission under paragraph (1) of
this subsection after the date of enactment
of the Hearing Aid Compatibility Act of
1988 shall exempt from the requirements
established pursuant to paragraph (1XB) of
this subsection only-

"(I) telephones used with public mobile
services;

"(ii) telephones used with private radio
services;

"(ill) cordless telephones; and
"(iv) secure telephones.
"(B) The exemption provided by such reg-

ulations for cordless telephones shall not
apply with respect to cordless telephones
manufactured or imported more than three
years after the date of enactment of the
Hearing Aid Compatibility Act of 1988.

"(C) The Commission shall periodically
assess the appropriateness of continuing in
effect the exemptions provided by such reg-
ulations for telephones used with public
mobile services and telephones used with
private radio services. The Commission shall
revoke or otherwise limit any such exemp-
tion if the Commission determines thet-

"(I) such revocation or limitation is in the
public interest;

"(ti) continuation of the exemption with-
out such revocation or limitation would
have an adverse effect on hearing-impaired
individuals;

"(ill) compliance with the requirements of
paragraph (1XB) is technologically feasible
for the telephones to which the exemption
applies; and

"(iv) compliance with the requirements of
paragraph (1XB) would not increase costs to
such an extent that the telephones to which
the exemption applies could not be success-
fully marketed.

"(3) The Commission may, upon the appli-
cation of any interested person, initiate a
proceeding to waive the requirements of
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paragraph (1XB) of this subsection with re-
spect to new telephones, or telephones asso-
ciated with a new technology or service. The
Commission shall not grant such a waiver
unless the Commission determines, on the
basis of evidence in the record of such pro-
ceeding, that such telephones, or such tech-
nology or service, are in the public interest,
and that (A) compliance with the require-
ments of paragraph (IXB) is technologically
infeasible. or (B) compliance with such re-
quirements would increase the costs of the
telephones, or of the technology or service,
to such an extent that such telephones,
technology, or service could not be success-
fully marketed. In any proceeding under
this paragraph to grant a waiver from the
requirements of paragraph (1XB), the Com-
mission shal consider the effect on hearing-
impaired individuals of granting the waiver.
The Commission shal periodically review
and determine the continuing need for any
waiver granted pursuant to this paragraph.

"(4) For purposes of this subsection-
"(A) the term 'essential telephones' means

only coin-operated telephones telephones
provided for emergency use, and other tele-
phones frequently needed for use by per-
sons using such hearing aids:

"(B) the term 'public mobile services'
means air-to-ground radiotelephone serv-
ces, cellular radio telecommunications serv-
ices offshore radio, rural radio service,
public land mobile telephone service. and
other common carrier radio communication
services covered by part 22 of title 47 of the
Code of Federal Regulations;

"(C) the term 'private radio services'
means private land mobile radio services
and other communications services charac-
terized by the Commission in Its rule as pri-
vate radio aervices; and

"(D) the term 'secure telephones' means
telephones that are approved by the United
8tates Government for the transmission of
lassified or sensitive voice communica-

tionl".
(b) Secton 710(f) of the Communications

Act of 1934 (47 US.C. 610(f)) is amended by
striking out the second sentence and Insert-
ing In lieu thereof the following: "The Com-
mission shall complete rulemaking actionr
required to implement the amendments
made by the Hearing Aid Compatibility Act
of 1988 within nine months after the date of
enactment of such Act Thereafter, the
Commission shall periodically review the
regulations established pursuant to this sec-
tioL".

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. The bill is open to further
amendment. If there be no further
amendment to be proposed, the ques-
tion is on agreeing to the committee
amendment in the nature of a substi-
tute.

The committee amendment in the
nature of a substitute was agreed to.

Mr. PRESSLER. Mr. President, I am
very pleased to rise today to speak in
favor of S. 314, the Hearing Aid Com-
patibillty Act of 1988. I have been
working on this legislation for 4 years
now, and It was very gratifying to see
the House of Representatives pass the
companion measure last month. The
Senate Committee on Commerce, Sci-
ence, and Transportation favorably re-
ported 8. 314 on May 24, and I look
forward to quick passage by the full
Senate.

This act will require that all tele-
phones, with certain exceptions, man-
ufactured in or Imported to the United

States more than 1 year after enact-
ment be hearing aid compatible. Thus
this legislation ultimately aims at uni-
versal telephone compatibility with
hearing aids.

The Telecommunications for the
Disabled Act of 1982 began to address
the needs of hearing-impaired individ-
uals by requiring "essential" tele-
phones to be hearing-aid compatible.
This ensured that there always would
be some telephones available to the
hearing-impaired, but most telephones
were not defined as essential

I wonder how well most of us would
function if we were restricted to using
only those telephones which have
been defined by the FCC as essential
Fortunately, for most of us, we can use
any telephone. When we visit friends,
,we know we cSpca ll-home-fromffier
home. When we are away from our
desksawknow we can still use Zther
telephones xn the woiilace. When we
stay'at a hotal-*e-dn't have to ask
for a room which has a compatible
telephone, and then hope that such a
room is available. Life would not be so
easy If we were all restricted to only
those telephones currently defined as
essential

Even that situation could be accepta-
ble If there were some good reason for
It. But there isn't The technology
which allows telephones to be hearing
aid compatible has been available
since 1945. It is known as inductive
coupling and uses the electromagnetic
field to transmit the conversation.
This transmission can occur if both
the telephone handset and the hear-
ing aid are equipped with a telecoiL
Prior to the deregulation of AT&T,
virtually all the telephones they man-
ufactured were hearing aid compati-
ble. Thus there was no need for a legal
requirement.

Since deregulation, however, with
the entrance of many new manufac-
turers, and in the absence of a legal re-
quirement, telephones without a mag-
netic coil inevitably have entered the
marketplace. Many of these are pro-
duced overseas To the credit of GTE
and AT&T, they have continued to
make nearly all of their telephones
hearing aid compatible. But the-per-
centage of incompatible telephones on
the market has steadily climbed.

Not only is the technology available
but it does not appreciably add to the
cost of producing telephones. In 1985,
the Commerce Department stated
that hearing aid compatible tele-
phones were no more expensive to
manufacture than noncompatible tele-
phones. The industry itself provides
estimates of anywhere from 10 to 50
cents additional cost per phone, and
GTE claims that compatible tele-
phones are just as competitive on the
market as noncompatible telephones.

Perhaps the most difficult issue with
regard to this legislation was the ques-
tion of new, as yet unknown, technol-
ogies. The original language did not
allow for new technologies and this
caused great concern in the Industry.

On the other hand, a broad exemption
for new technologies could defeat the
whole purpose of this bill by allowing
some new type of general purpose tele-
phone developed a couple of years
from now to be noncompatible.

Dealing with the unknown is diffi-
cult, 'but I think we reached a good
compromise. New technologies must
be compatible with hearing aids,
unless they are specifically exempted
by the FCC. To gain such an exemp-
tion, the developer must demonstrate
that compatibility is either technologi-
cally impossible or so costly as to pre-
vent the product from being success-
fully marketed. Thus, products can be
developed and marketed which cannot
be made compatible.

We cannot predict all the specialized
telephone technologies which may be
developed In the future, and they
must not be prevented from comingU'o
market. On the other hand, the aver-
age telephone that Is used in the home
and place of business should continue
to be compatible with hearing aids, re-
gardless of how that technology
changes.

To this end, the FCC is instructed to
consider the needs of the hearing-im-
paired before granting any waivers.
And in no case will any telephones
currently required to be hearing-aid
compatible be exempted.

Telephones used for national securti
ty are the only telephones permanent-
ly exempted from the compatibility re-
quirement. Cordless telephones are ex-
empted for 3 years and cellular tele-
phones receive an initial exemption.
Except for secure telephones and cord-
less telephones, all the initial exemp-
tions and future exemptions to be
granted by the FCC will be reviewed
periodically by the FCC to determine
if they are still warranted. The period-
ic review provisions act as a valve to
keep the compatibility trend flowing
in the right direction. A new exemp-
tion cannot be created for an old tech-
nology. Again, the ultimate goal of
this legislation is to provide for univer-
sal compatibility.

Before closing, I must mention the
role of David Saks, of the Organiza-
tion for Use of the Telephone (OUT),
in initiating and advocating this legis-
lation, David has worked tirelessly for
years on behalf of the hearing-im-
paired community to ensure universal
access to the telephone network. OUT
is not a large organization with a huge
budget. Nevertheless, David coordinat-
ed support for this legislation from or-
ganizations such as the America Asso-
clation of Retired Persons, the Nation-
al Center for Law and the Deaf, the
National Association of Regulatory
Utility Commissioners. and numerous
other national and State organiza-
tlons. He worked vigorously with Mr.
MAVROouLs in the House, myself in the
Senate, and the telephone and elec-
tronics industries.

Mr. President, I again urge passage
of this legislation. With existing tech-
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nology and at negligible cost to indus-
try, we can create the same universal
telephone service for hearing-impaired
persons that the rest of us enjoy.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. The question is on the engross-
ment and the third reading of the bill.

The bill was ordered to be engrossed
for a third reading, and was read the
third time.

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that the Senate
now proceed to the consideration of
Calendar Order No. 723, HLR. 2213.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. The bill will be stated by title.

The assistant legislative clerk read
as follows:

A bill (R. 2213) to require certain tele-
phones to be hearing aid compatible.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. Is there objection to the present
consideration of the bill?

There being no objection, the Senate
proceeded to consider the bill.

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that all after the
enacting clause be stricken, and the
text of S. 314. as amended, be inserted
In lieu thereof.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. Without objection, it is so or-
dered.

The question is on the engrossment
and the third reading of the bill.

The bill (HR. 2213) was ordered to
be engrossed for a third reading, was
read the third time, and passed.

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, I move to
reconsidered the vote by which the bill
was passed.

Mr. DOLE. I Move to lay that
motion on the table.

The motion to lay on the table was
agreed to.

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that Calendar
Order No. 743 be indefinitely post-
poned.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. Without objection, it is so or-
dered.

ORDER TO INDEFINITELY
POSTPONE S. 1993

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that Calendar
Order No. 753, S. 1993, a bill to amend
the Small Business Act to improve the
growth and development of small busi-
ness concerns owned and controlled by
socially and economically disadvan-
taged individuals, especially through
participation in the Federal procure-
ment process, and for other purposes,
be indefinitely postponed.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. Without objection, It is so or-
dered.

ORDERS FOR TUESDAY, JULY 12,
1988

RECESS UNTIL 9 A.M.

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that when the
Senate completes Its business today it

stand in recess until the hour of 9
o'clock tomorrow morning.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. Without objections it is so or-
dered.

RDUCrION OF IEADER TIME AND MORNING
BUSINESS

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that on tomorrow
morning the time of the two leaders be
reduced to 5 minutes each and that,
following the time for the recognition
on the two leaders under the standing
order, there be a period for morning
business to extend until 9:15 am., and
that Senators may speak during that
period for morning business for not to
exceed 1 minute each.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. Without objection, it is so or-
dered.

PROGRAM
Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, the order

has been entered, has It not, for a vote
on final passage of the Veterans' De-
partment bill?

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. That Is correct.

Mr. BYRD. And that will occur at
9:15 am.?

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. The majority leader is correct.

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, the dis-
tinguished Republican leader and I
have agreed that on tomorrow, follow-
ing the vote on the veterans' bill, the
Senate will then proceed to the consid-
eration of the transportation appro-
priations bill. So that will be the order
following the vote. If both sides can
alert Senators who are involved in the
transportation bill, the managers
thereof, the Senate can then proceed
quickly to that bill

After the transportation appropria-
tions bill, Mr. President, under the
order as it presently stands, the
Senate will proceed to the consider-
ation of the HUD appropriations bill.
Upon the disposition of that bill, the
Senate will take up the Interior appro-
priations bill.

Does the distinguished Republican
leader have any statement he wishes
to make or any comments about the
program as I have outlined It, or any
further business he would like to
transact?

Mr. DOLE. No further business. I
have indicated to the majority leader
that we will check on the Labor-HHS
appropriations bill-we might be able
to do a portion of that-and also the
other outstanding bills.

Mr. BYRD. The only remaining ones
would be Agriculture, Defense, and
State-Justice-Commerce. Those three,
in addition to the Labor-EHS bill
which has been mentioned by the able
Republican leader.

Also tomorrow morning I would like
to get a time agreement on the Endan-
gered Species Act. If the distinguished
leader could alert anyone on his side
who might be involved in that act, I

would like to put that request follow-
ing the rollcall vote.

Mr. DOLE. I will ask the distin-
guished Senator from Idaho, Senator
MCCLURE, to be here. I will be attend-
ing a White House meeting at that
time. He has an interest in that bill.
We will notify him and ask him to be
present following the vote.

Mr. BYRD. Very well.

CONCLUSION OF MORNING
BUSINESS

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, has morn-
ing business been closed?

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. If there is no further morning
business, morning business is closed.

ESTABLISHMENT OF VETERANS'
ADMINISTRATION AS AN EXEC-
UTIVE DEPARTMENT
The Senate continued with the con-

sideration of the bill.
Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, what is

the pending business before the
Senate?

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. S. 533 is the pending business.

Mr. BYRD. That is the bill creating
a new department for veterans' af-
fairs?

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem-
pore. That is correct.

Mr. BYRD. I thank the Chair.

RECESS UNTIL 9 AM..
TOMORROW

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, if there
be no further business to come before
the Senate, I move, in accordance with
the order previously entered, that the
Senate stand in recess until the hour
of 9 o'clock aLmn tomorrow.

The motion was agreed to; and, at
8:16 p.m., the Senate recessed until
Tuesday, July 12, 1988, at 9 am.

NOMINATIONS
Executive nominations received by

the Secretary of the Senate July 8,
1988, after the recess of the Senate,
under authority of the order of the
Senate of February 3, 1987:

DEPAR T OFr T rE TREASURY

SALVATORE . MARTOCHE OF NEW YORKC TO BE
AN ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF THE TREASURY. VICE
FRANCIS ANTHONY KEATING IL

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

FL KENT BURTON, OF VIROINIA TO BE ASSISTANT
8ECRETARY OP COMMERCE FOR OCEANS AND AT-
MOSPHERE. VICE JAMES CURTIS MACK IL RESIIOND.

EXPORT-IMPORT BANK OF THE UNITED STATES

RICHARD C. HOUSEWORTH. OF ARIZONA. TO BE A
MEMBER OF THE BOARD OP DIRECTORS OP THE
EXPORT-IMPORT BANK OP THE UNITED STATES FOR
A TERM OF 4 YEARS EXPIRINO JANUARY 20. 191.
VICE RICHARD W. BELDRIDWE. RESIGNED.

JAMES MADISON MEMORIAL FELLOWSHIP
FOUNDATION

THE FOLLOWING NAMED PERSONS TO BE MEMBERS
OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE JAMES MADI-
SON MEMORIAL FELLOWSHIP FOUNDATION FOR
TEhIMS OGP YEARS
JOAN R CHALLINOR, OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUM-

BIA. (NEW POSITION.)
RETTY SOURHARD MURPHY. OF VIROINIA. (NEW PO-

sITION.)
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This salary cap applies to the Staff Director
of the Sentencing Commisslon. Opinion of
the Comptroller General, File No. B-227781
(Septemberl L 1987).

As a result, the salary of the Staff Direc-
tor is now artificially low, and over time wil
become increasingly unsuitable. The pro-
posed amendment disengages the Staff Di-
rector's salary .from the capped General
Schedule and instead sets the salary at level
6 of the Senior ExecuUtve Service Schedule.
currently $77,500.

Other government officials with responsi-
bility comparable to that of the Staff Direc-
tor are compensated at level 6 of the Senior
Executive Service Schedule. For example,
the Executive Director of the Federal Trade
Commission and the Director of the FTC's
Bureau of Economics are compensated at
that level, a are the Executive Directors of
the National Mediation Board, the National
Capital Planning Commission, and the US.
International Trade Commission. The staff
directors. inspectors general, and general
counsei of many other agencies are compen-
sated at level IV of the Executive Schedule
which is identical to level 6 of the Senior
Executive Service Schedule. Under the pro-
posal. the StaWf Director of the Commission
would still receive somewhat less compensa-
tLon than the Directors of the Federal Judi-
cial Center and the Administrative Office of
the United States Courts. Those officials
earn the same zalary as federal district
court Judges currently $89,500. 28 U&.C.
603. 625.

Adopt!on of this amendmnnt will enable
the Comnisslion to attract anrd retain highly
qualified individuals for this important
criminal justice post

Secticx 315
Because of the Sentencing Commission's

unusual status as an independent agency
within the Judicial branch. the Commis-
sion's employees are denied the opportuni-
ty, available to virtually all other federal
employees, to receive incentive awasrds for
meritorious service. An opinion of the
Comptoller General dated September 11,
1981 (File No. B-227781), holds that the
Comnmioion may not grant such awards
without express statutory authority. There
Is no apparent reason why the Commission's
staff should be treated differently in this
regard from, for example, the staff of the
Adminstrative Office of the United States
Courts.

Section 316
This amendment oortects a technical

error. The Conmission's authority to lower
a sentencing range is set forth in subsection
(o) of 991, not subdivision (n).

Section 317
Section 3553(aX2XC) directs a sentencing

court to consider the need to protect the
public from future crimes of the defendant.
8ection 9 of the Sentencing Act of 1987 in-
cluded this factor among those to be consid-
ered In imposing a term of supervised re-
lease. The proposed amendment wouldln-
elude this factor among those to be consid-
ered in etting and modifying the conditions
of supervised release as well.

Section 318
This amendment to 28 US.C. 994(p)

grants the Sentencing Commission more
flexibility with respect to the submission of

,guideline amendments to Congress. Al-
though the power to submit more than one
report and to amend a report may be implic-
it in section 994(p), It is desirable to provide
this authority explicitly and to clarify the
applicatUon of the one hundred and eighty
day period in the case of an amended
report.

This unenament also addresses a concern
raised About the operation of section 21 of
the Sentencing Act of 1987, Pub. L 100-182.
That provision gives the Sentencing Com-
mission the authority to ssue temporary
guidelines in certain circumstanees and pro-
vides that such temporary guldeJlnes remain
in effect only' until the expiration of the
180-da rerew period following the issuance
of the next set of permanent amendments
made pursuant to section 994(p). It was con-
templated at the time section 21 was en-
acted that any temporary guidelines pro-
mulgated pursuant to that section before
May 1 of a given year would be Incorporated
in the report filed by the Sentencing Com-
mission for that year. That statute, howev-
er, fails to account for the situation where
the annual report Is filed early in the legis-
lative sest5on and the temporary guidelines
are promulgated thereafter, but not later
than May 1. It appears that in such an
event. the ten;porary guidelines, having not
been incorporawed in the annual report.
could remain in effect in excess of 18
months-Le, until the expiration of the one
hundred and eighty day period following
the filing of the next annual report.

This amendment of 994(p) rectifles that
situation by providing for the filing of an
amended report by the Commission not
later than May L In the event it finds it
necessary to promulgate temporary guide-
lines after It has filed Its annual report
under section 994(p), the Commission will
be able to amend its report, incorporating
the new guidelines, not later than MaY 1 so
that Congress can review all pending guide-
line changes during the current session. The
Commission, however, Is not required to In-
corporate temporary amendments in an
amended report because there may be Insuf-
ficient opportunity for public comment con-
cerning a temporary amendment, rendering
its submission to Congres as a permanent
amendnmnt premature.

For example, if the Commission submits
permanent amendments to Congress in Jan-
uary. and then issues a temporary amend-
ment in February, the Commission would be
expected to obtain public comment concern-
ing the temporary amendment and either
amend the'permanent report by May to in-
corporate the temporary amendment or
withdraw the temporary amendment If the
Commission possesses the authority to
amend a submission to Congress there is no
reason vhy a temporary amendment Issued
early In the reporting period should remain
in effect for over a year vwithout Congres-
aional review. In conast, a temporary
amendment issued in April need not be in-
cluded in an amended report before May 1.
due to the absence of an opportunity for
meaningful public comment.L Furthermore,
If the Commission happens 'to Issue an
amended report or a new permanent report
after Issuing a temporary amendment in
April, it would be appropriate for the Com-
mission to reissue the temporary amend-
ment after the new report in order to avoid
a lapse of the temporary amendment This
course of action recognizes the Commis-
sion's authority, in this limited situation, to
prolong the life of the temporary amend-
ment until It has been exposed to public
comment and submitted as a permanent
amendment the following year.

Section 319
Secticn 3563(b)(3) currently provides that

the court may order a defendant to make
resttution'as a condition of probation pur-
suant to the provlsions-of section 3556. That
section merely refers to the procedures set
forth in sections 3603 and 3664.

The Committee believes that in enacting
the restitution provisions of 3563(bX3) Con-

gres intended to permit restitution to be a
condition of probation In the case of any
criminal offense. The indirect reference to
section 3663, however, may have inadvert-
ently frustrated this purpose, in that sec-
tion 3663 describes the procedures for order-
ing restitution only In cases where .viola-
tions of title 18 offenses, or violations of the
Federal Aviation Act. have occurred.

In order to make clear that restitution
may be made a conditon of probation in
any criminal case, the amendment specifics
that while the procedures set forth in sec-
tion 3663 and 3664 are to be used, tle limi-
tation to title 18 (and FAA) offenses does
not apply. The intermediate reference to
section 3556 Is eliminated as muruecessary.

Section 320
Rule 4(b) of the Appellate Rules of Proce-

dure provides that in a crimilrJ case, a de-
fendant has 10 days in which to tile an
appeal, and the government has ?e tLayN. In
both cases the time period n.113 fro)u the
entry of the Judgenfient.

Under 18 U.S.C. 3742, both the de'eriant
and the government are entitled to appeal
from the sentence imposed by the court In
certain circumstances. The Committee is
concerned that the respective time limits on
filing appeals currently set forth In Rule
4(b) might place a defendant at a disadvan-
tage in some cases brought under this sec-
tion. For instance, where a defendant re-
celves a light sentence, he nmay allow the 10
day period to lapse without filing an appeal.
only to find the government has chosen to
file Its own appeal within its thirty day
limit. In such a case the defendant, under
current law, would be forclosed from filing a
crXoss appeaL

The amendment remedies this situation
by permitting either party to start counting
the period for filing an appeal at the day an
appeal Is filed by the opposing party. Thus
If the government files an appeal on the
thirtieth day. the defendant would have an
additional 10 days from that point to file a
cross appeal; and Uf two defendants In a case
filed appeals on the fifth and tenth days re-
spectively. the government would have 30
davs from the latter date in which to file its
appeal.

BILLS PLACED ON THE
CALENDAR

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that when the
Seriate receives from the House the
following bills that they be placed on
the calendar.

ELR 4416. The Library Services construc-
tion reauthorzation;

HR. 4585. Taft Institute reauthorization;
ER. 4592. Peace Institute, reauthoriza-

Lion;
HR. 4638. Elementary and secondary edu-

cation technical amendments bill;
H.R. 4639. Higher education teclmical-

amendments bill;
t.R 462L To provide congressional sp-

proval of the governing International Fish-
ery Agreement between the United States
and the German Democratic Republic;

ER. 2213. A bill to require certain tele-
phones to be hearing aid compatible.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. With-
out objection, it is so ordered.

THE FIRST FRIENDSHIP FLIGHT
BETWEEN ALASKA AND SIBERIA

Mr. D'AMATO. Mr. President, I send
an enclosed resolution to the desk on

S7456


